
Washington County Commissioners Minutes 1
May 22, 2023

May 22, 2023

The Board of County Commissioners of Washington County, Idaho, does hereby meet
this 22nd day of May 2023.

IN THE MATTER OF ROLL CALL)

Donna Atwood, Clerk, called roll call:  Gordon Wilkerson, present; Lyndon Haines,
present; and Nate Marvin, present.

Lyndon Haines opened the meeting and Gordon Wilkerson led the Pledge of Allegiance.
Nate Marvin gave the invocation.

IN THE MATTER OF CORRESPONDENCE/MEETINGS AND REPORTS)

Correspondence received by the Board was reviewed and disseminated as required.

Nate Marvin reported he attended a telephonic meeting last week with WICAP regarding
a LRIP Grant Application.

Lyndon Haines stated he will be attending the Southwest District Health Board meeting
tomorrow. 

Gordon Wilkerson discussed concerns related to fencing issues and stated that there
needs to be clarity of fencing responsibilities when a sale of property occurs. Wilkerson
stated there seems to be a misunderstanding as to who is responsible for fencing at the
time of sale of private property. Haines encouraged Wilkerson to express his concerns
with the Title Companies.

Nate Marvin moved, seconded by Gordon Wilkerson, to approve a Retail Alcohol
Beverage License No. 33 for Vonmarks, LLC doing business as Legends on Main.
Motion carried. 

Gordon Wilkerson moved, seconded by Nate Marvin, to approve an Alcohol Beverage
Catering Application for Holland’s Bike and Brews to be used on June 24, 2023, at 1423
Larsen Road, Weiser, Idaho. Motion carried.

Nate Marvin moved, seconded by Gordon Wilkerson, to approve the Operation in
Funds/Statement of Treasurer’s Cash for April 1, 2023, through April 30, 2023, in the
amount of $16,625,940.31. Motion carried.

Nate Marvin moved, seconded by Gordon Wilkerson, to approve the agreement with
Design West for the 3rd Floor Renovation Project. Motion carried.



Washington County Commissioners Minutes 6
May 22, 2023

May 22, 2023

incentives are available to encourage restoration of historical buildings. Edmondson
stated that there is grant funding available through the CLG (Certified Local
Government) grant program because the Historical Preservation Society had petitioned
and became a CLG in 1986. Edmondson stated that the Historical Preservation Society
received a CLG grant allowing placing the Sunnyside School on the National Registry.
Edmondson stated that the county funding received could be used as grant matching
funds. Edmondson informed the Board that many hours of volunteer work go into these
projects. 

Wilkerson discussed the Dixie Creek Bridge and requested clarity on the weight rating of
the bridge. Wilkerson stated it was his understanding that funding is now available, and
the bridge could possibly be replaced this fall. Wilkerson stated that the Historical
Society had to mediate on what to do with the bridge. Wilkerson stated an outside entity
halted the process of the bridge construction/replacement, and that he believed the
Historical Society should be responsible to pay the additional expense.

Edmondson stated that he believes there is a misunderstanding. Edmondson informed the
group that at the local level the Committee had nothing to do with the bridge. The
Transportation Department looked at the Dixie Creek Bridge and determined that the
wing wall had to be improved. Edmondson stated the local entity’s goal was to help the
county with a bridge that needed a new deck.

Wilkerson stated that some entity has held up the construction of the bridge.

Edmondson stated that if Wilkerson could provide a name to him, he would be happy to
help. Edmondson stated that he would like to see the Dixie Creek bridge saved as it is one
of the last pony truss bridges in the county.

IN THE MATTER OF A RESOLUTION TO HALT AND RECALL THE MRNA
TECHNOLOGY PLATFORMS AND INJECTIONS)

Laura Demaray met with the Board. Demaray presented copies of the resolution to the
Board for review. Demaray stated her words are her own opinion and that she supports a
Resolution to Halt and Recall the MRNA Technology Platforms and Injections. Demaray
provided the number of persons who have suffered damages due to injections. Demaray
stated that there are plans to administer shots to children. Demaray discussed damage to
livestock as well.

Dr. Lindsay addressed the Board. Lindsay stated both MRNA and Pfizer DNA are
contaminated. Lindsay stated that the injections are cancer causing. Anyone injected may
become resistant. Lindsay stated that the matter has been brought forward to the FDA
(Food and Drug Administration), but no response has been received. Lindsay requested
immediate recall of the vaccines.

Katherine Watt



Washington County Commissioners Minutes 7
May 22, 2023

May 22, 2023

Dr. Peter McCullough, Texas, discussed his background. McCullough stated that in his
opinion, all the Covid 19 vaccines are not safe. McCullough discussed symptoms from
the vaccines. McCullough further stated that the vaccines are not medically necessary and
did not stop Covid 19. McCullough informed the Board that the vaccines do not prevent
the spreading of the disease. McCullough further stated that there are no benefit vaccines
and that they have caused extraordinary harm and should be removed from markets.

Dr. James Thorp, Florida, addressed the Board. Thorp stated he has been practicing for
44 years. Thorp informed the Board that he has seen increased complications in
pregnancies. Thorp stated that this is the most lethal drug ever rolled out.

Dr. Ryan Cole, Boise, stated that his opinions expressed today are his own. Cole provided
a brief background to the Board. Cole stated that there has been an increase in cancer
after the roll out of the injections. Cole informed the Board there are no long-term safety
studies available on any of the products. Cole stated that the injections have altered the
ability of immune systems.

Dr. Sasha Latypova provided a review of her background to the Board. Latypova stated
that consumer protection laws were suspended for these injections. Latypova informed
the Board that she believes that it is urgent that a vote of no confidence be issued
regarding the vaccines. Latypova further stated that the animal testing that was conducted
was fraudulent, and that contamination cannot be traced. Latypova stated that the
vaccines need to be fully investigated and tested.

Demaray reviewed materials provided to the Board. Demaray stated that she came to the
Board because if the authorities above the Commissioners do not protect citizens it falls
to the Board and the Sheriff.

IN THE MATTER OF IDAHO FISH AND GAME WOLF REDUCTION PROPOSAL)

Tim Murphy, Jon Rachael, Regan Berkley, and Mark Sands with the Forest Service met
with the Board.

Tim Murphy addressed the Board and stated that the Wolf Management Plan has been
adopted by the Fish and Game Commission. A wolf population of 500 is the target
number. Murphy stated that the population would fluctuate, and that Idaho has expanded
hunting and trapping of wolves.

Regan provided a summary of the wolf reduction plan.

Jon Rachael discussed the growth rate of the wolf population and stated that currently
there are approximately 1,270 wolves in Idaho. Rachael stated it would take a removal of
37% each year to achieve the annual mortality rate of 500 wolves. Trapping represents
approximately one half of the total population removed. Rachael stated that there are

Katherine Watt

Katherine Watt



Washington County Commissioners Minutes 8
May 22, 2023

May 22, 2023

approximately 100 litters born in Idaho each year with 5 to 6 puppies per litter. Rachael
informed the Board that environmental groups petitioned to have wolves protected.

Wilkerson inquired if they believed the 500 number is one that can be supported.

Rachael stated that the life of the Management Plan is 6 years. Rachael discussed suitable
versus unsuitable habitat. Rachael informed the Board that due to livestock grazing
Washington and neighboring counties would likely fall out of what is considered suitable
habitat.

There was continued discussion regarding the Frank Church Wilderness area and the
ability to control wolf populations in the wilderness areas. The group also discussed the
use and effectiveness of collars and ariel applications for controlling the population.

Motion by Lyndon Haines, seconded by Gordon Wilkerson and unanimously carried to
recess at 3:06 p.m. until June 5, 2023 at 8:45 a.m.

____________________________________
Chairman, Board of County Commissioners

ATTEST:

_________________________________
Clerk

A full audio recording of the Commissioner Meeting is available at the Clerk’s Office
upon request.


